When their work was done…..The story of the Retired Nurses National Home in   Bournemouth.

In 1929 a nurse called Miss Fanny Thompson was recovering from an illness when 

she received a letter which was to have significance way beyond her imagination at 

the time. In the letter, an elderly nurse revealed that, when she had paid her rent, she 

had only a shilling or two left to buy food and anything else she needed and was 

really in dire straits. This stimulus was to lead Miss Thompson to call together a 

group of her friends and they came up with the idea of providing a Home for elderly 

nurses.

At first a local Committee was set up and fund-raising events planned to raise enough 

money to start building a Home. The Committee gradually became more active and in 

1934 the Countess of Malmesbury was asked to be President of what then became 

known as the Elderly Nurses’ National Home Fund. The Fund now went public and in 

1935, during a meeting at the Town Hall, it was announced that a bazaar would be 

held later that year. To illustrate the level of support for the venture, Queen Mary is 

said to have sent 2 Minton plates to be sold for the benefit of the Fund, and 4 years 

later, at another bazaar, two spoons she sent fetched £200 at auction. This whole 

bazaar itself raised £1,722

By 1937, sufficient money had been raised to lay the Foundation Stone and start 

building. It is recorded that this was laid with ‘full Masonic ceremonial’ by the Earl of 

Malmesbury, the then provincial Grand Master for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight.  

Subsequently a London Committee was set up, presided over by the Countess of 

Malmesbury. This Committee was made up of a wide range of people, but mainly 

those from ‘the upper social classes'.

By 1938, the central block had been built and the first 2 Residents, together with a 

Matron and a Cook, moved in before Christmas that year.  A gift of £4000 from Lord 

Nuffield enabled the erection of the front 2 wings of the Home.  A further gift of 

£6000 from him allowed the building to be completed, with rooms for 36 nurses. The 

following year saw the outbreak of War and, as the position of the Home made it 

stand out as a landmark, it was suggested that the roof be painted to make it look like 

grass.  A small party of the Home Guard were also deployed at the Home from 8pm to 

6am each night to ensure the nurses were protected and felt secure. Due to the War 

the formal opening of the Home was delayed until 1946. Over 500 people attended 

this event, which was officiated by Lord Nuffield. 

Now, over 70 years later, the Home has expanded to provide accommodation for 66 

residents. Until the late 1990’s, the Home had Nursing beds and employed qualified 

nursing staff. However, it is now classified as a Residential Home and is staffed by 

Health Care Assistants with a Head of Care and Manager in charge. There are 

facilities for residents to live independently in their own small flats, with kitchen and 

bathroom facilities, and there are a few who still drive cars. Residents have their own 

bed-sitting room with facilities. They may have meals in the Dining Room or in their 

own rooms. Respite care is now offered too and has proved to be very successful. 
The Home has its own Chapel where services are held. The Residents themselves 

arrange these. There are also several sitting rooms where different activities take place 

and these include a TV room, computer room and a well-stocked library.  The gardens 

have always been a great feature of the Home. In the early days, money was raised to 

set up an Edith Cavell Memorial rose garden, which is still well cared for and in the 

autumn of last year a Florence Nightingale rose bush was planted, in memory of the 

100 years since her death. The residents themselves are involved in the garden and 

have created raised beds, and some also use the garden to grow their own vegetables.

I have been a Trustee at the Home now for 5 years and during that time have already 

seen a number of changes. We are a Charity and according to the Home’s governing 

document Trustees are responsible for ‘controlling the management and 

administration of the Home’. We form a Board of Management which meets monthly 

at the Home. There are 2 Standing Committees, the Finance Committee and the Land 

and Buildings Committee. We ensure that there is an appropriate strategy for running 

the Home. We are fortunate that the Home is known for its high standards and is 

regularly rated ‘Excellent’ by the Care Quality Commission.
There are now two changes taking place in the Home. Firstly, our nurses are 

becoming more frail and elderly when they arrive. When the original remit of the 

Home is recalled, nurses came when they first retired at 60 years of age, when they 

were active and could do much for themselves. It was the custom, as many of you will 

remember, that nurses could not get married and continue to practise, so lived all their 

nursing life in the Nurses’ Home and had no property to move into on retirement. 

Until very recently we were the only Home in England dedicated to providing care 

solely for nurses. However, we need to balance our budget, and in order to do so, we 

first accepted people for Respite Care.  This was very successful and was made 

available to other members of the health professions. This last year we have gone 

back to the Charity Commission and asked for our Objects to be changed, so that we 

may offer permanent care to people other than nurses. However preference will 

always be given to nurses, in doing so we hope to uphold the ideals that Fanny 

Thompson brought to the project in 1929.
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